

#### UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20460

012913

OCT 2 2 1998

OFFICE OF PREVENTION, PESTICIDES AND **TOXIC SUBSTANCES** 

**MEMORANDUM** 

SUBJECT:

Tralkoxydim - Report of the Cancer Assessment Review Committee

FROM:

Jess Rowland July 19/22/43
Executive Secretary

Cancer Assessment Review Committee

Health Effects Division (7509C)

TO:

Jim Tompkins, PM 25

Fungicide-Herbicide Branch Registration Division (7505C)

The Cancer Assessment Review Committee met on July 8, 1998 to evaluate the carcinogenic potential of Tralkoxydim. Attached please find the Final Cancer Assessment Document.

cc: Karl Baetcke Luke Brennecke

Lori Brunsman

Bill Burnam

Marion Copley

Kerry Dearfield

Virginia Dobozy

Mike Ioannou

Esther Rinde

Jess Rowland

Joycelyn Stewart

Linda Taylor

# CANCER ASSESSMENT DOCUMENT

EVALUATION OF THE CARCINOGENIC POTENTIAL OF TRALKOXYDIM

FINAL REPORT

Signature in

October 7, 1998

(§ignature in the patholog analysis of de

CANCER ASSESSMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE
HEALTH EFFECTS DIVISION
OFFICE OF PESTICIDE PROGRAMS

2

DATA PRESENTATION:	James Peggins, Toxicologist
DOCUMENT PREPARATION:	Jess Rowland, Executive Secretary
COMMITTEE MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE	(Signature indicates concurrence with the assessment unless otherwise stated).
William Burnam, Chairman	hr dom
Karl Baetcke	Jan Starte
Marion Copley	Marior Copley
Kerry Dearfield	Kuy a learfiel de
Virginia Dobozy	Viguen Dabory
Mike Ioannou	LM. Lanning
Esther Rinde	Cotte Rinde
Joycelyn Stewart	Jeyalya Estewart-
Linda Taylor - Security Rela	Link Lee Jay
NON-COMMITTEE MEMBERS IN ATTENDAL	CE oten Signature indicates concurrence with and RBI the pathology report and statistical
O sawification of Carcinog	enicity analysis of data, respectively)
Luke Brennecke, Pathology Consultant	Sun & Enweche
Lori Brunsman, Statistical Analysis	Jori S. Brunsman
OTHER ATTENDEES: Elizabeth Mendez	

## CONTENTS

Executive Summary
I. Introduction
II. Background Information
e egin. Henneg egin en
III. Evaluation of Carcinogenicity Studies lesions. St
1. Combined Chronic Toxicity & Carcinogenicity Study in Wistar Rats
2. Carcinogenicity Study in Syrian Golden Hamster
IV. Toxicology
1. Metabolism
2. Mutagenicity
3. Structure Activity Relationship
4. Subchronic and Chronic Toxicity
V. Committee's Assessment of the Weight-of-the Evidence
1. Carcinogenicity
2. Mutagenicity
that the Concined that the L
3. Structure Activity Relationshiphe carcinogens
of the treased body weight gains, decreased for the second
VII. Classification of Carcinogenic Potential cell areas
addition decreased RBC count, and here.
VIII. Quantification of Carcinogenicity sis in the liver
IX. Bibliography
inogenic potential of ?
The Committee
sess the case.
-sted was not
Linear the study, 3; and the study of the st
ed 20% of males and 20°

#### EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

On July 8, 1998, the Cancer Assessment Review Committee of the Health Effects Division of the Office of Pesticide Programs met to evaluate the carcinogenic potential of tralkoxydim. Dr. James Peggins of Toxicology Branch I introduced the chronic toxicity/carcinogenicity study in Wistar rats and the carcinogenicity study in the Syrian golden hamster by describing the following: experimental design; reporting on survival and body weight effects; treatment-related nonneoplastic and neoplastic lesions; statistical analysis of the tumor data; the adequacy of the dose levels tested, and presenting the weight of evidence for the carcinogenicity of tralkoxydim. Dr. Peggins also discussed the toxicology, metabolism, and mutagenicity studies as well as structure activity relationships.

Tralkoxydim (technical, 92.4%) was administered in the diet to male and female Wistar rats at 0, 50, 500, or 2500 ppm (equivalent to 0, 2.3, 23.1 or 117.9 mg/kg/day and 0, 3.0, 30.1 or 162.8 mg/kg/day, in males and females, respectively) for 104 weeks. In the study with Syrian golden hamsters, the animals received tralkoxydim (technical, 97.6%) in the diet at dose levels of 0, 250, 2500 or 7500 ppm (equivalent to 0, 14.9, 153 or 438.6 mg/kg/day and 0, 14.8, 148.3 or 427.9 mg/kg/day, in males and females, respectively) for 78 weeks.

A carcinogenicity study in the second species, the mouse (as recommended in Subdivision F Guidelines), was not conducted due to significant porphyria which occurred after dosing with Tralkoxydim which precluded selection of doses adequate to test for carcinogenicity. The data indicated that of all the species tested (rats, hamsters, Guinea pigs, marmosets, dogs, deer mice, white-footed mice, and meadow voles); only the single species of mouse (Mus musculus) was susceptible to porphyrin accumulation in the liver following treatment with tralkoxydim. This was considered to be an idiosyncratic response of the mouse (Mus musculus) and not relevant to human exposure.

The Committee concluded that the dose levels tested in the Wistar rat study were adequate and not excessive to assess the carcinogenic potential of tralkoxydim in both sexes. This was based on decreased body weight gains, decreased food consumption, and increased liver weights correlated with hepatic clear cell areas in both sexes at the high-dose, relative to the controls. In addition, decreased RBC count and hematocrit were noted in the high dose females which was reflected in hemosiderosis in the liver.

The Committee concluded that the dose levels tested in the hamster study were not adequate to assess the carcinogenic potential of Tralkoxydim since no systemic toxicity was seen even at the highest dose level. The Committee also concluded that the study in the hamster was unacceptable and inadequate to assess the carcinogenic potential of Tralkoxydim for the following reasons: 1) a rationale for doses tested was not provided; 2) very low survival among females in the control group compromised the study; 3) amyloid deposition in kidneys, liver, adrenals, spleen, and thyroid affected 20% of males and 70% of females across all groups; and 4) most of the

> and adenocarcinomas (3.4%) 162 8 mg/kg/day to tree ifi

in remalde rate at the b

vaus arisons

intercurrent deaths were attributed to non-treatment-related reasons (such as enteropathy of the small intestine, generalized amyloidosis, and cardiovascular disorders) indicating that the poor survival rate was probably due to poor animal husbandry procedures at the testing laboratory or intercurrent disease. This could alter the results of the study.

Evidence of carcinogenicity was limited to the presence of benign testicular tumors in male Wistar rats. The occurrance of astrocytomas of the brain in males, benign stromal cell polyps in the cervix, and adenocarcinomas in the uterus of female rats were not attributed to treatment. The significance of adenomas of the adrenal glands seen in female hamsters could not be ascertained due to the poor survival of this sex which invalidated the study.

In male rats at the high dose (2500 ppm or 117.9 mg/kg/day), there was a significant trend (p=0.002) and a pair-wise significant (p=0.006) increase in benign Leydig cell tumors when compared to controls. Tumor incidences at the high dose (15/49, 31%) exceeded the concurrent controls (3/42, 7%) as well as the historical control range (3.8 to 19.2%) of the testing laboratory. In addition, there was an increase in the incidence of Leydig cell hyperplasia of the testes in male rats at the high dose (14/64, 22%) when compared to controls (4/64, 6%).

The Committee noted that in spite of a ten-fold increase in doses between the low-dose (50 ppm or 2.1 mg/kg/day) and the mid-dose (500 ppm or 23.1 mg/kg/day), there was no statistically significant increase in tumor incidences between the low-dose (5/40, 12%) and the mid-dose (6/47, 13%). Additionally, the incidences at these doses were within the historical control range (3.8 to 19.2%). The Committee, however, noted that the numerical increase of testicular tumors at the low-and mid-dose groups could be biologically significant and, therefore, cannot be discounted in spite of the lack of statistical significance.

The statistical evaluation of mortality indicated a significant decreasing trend with increasing doses of Tralkoxydim in male rats. Female rats showed no significant incremental changes in mortality with increasing doses of Tralkoxydim. Because of this finding, the statistical analyses of the female rats the male rats were based upon Peto's Prevalence Test. The statistical analyses of the female rats were based upon the Exact Trend Test and the Fisher's Exact Test for pair-wise comparisons. rain seen in male. The Committee did not attribute the numerical increase in astrocytomas of the brain seen in male and the promate exposure ( ) is 120 rats at the high dose (3/50, 6%) to treatment because:

- 1) the increase did not show pair-wise significance (p=0.140) when compared to concurrent controls (2/50, 4%).
- 2) the incidence was within the general range (0-5.8%) of historical controls.
- 3) there were no treatment-related non-neoplastic lesions in the brain.

101/ps (3/43, 5% o) The Committee did not attribute the numerical increases in benign stromal cell polyps (3/48, 6%) th dose (2500 ppr and adenocarcinomas (3/49, 6%) of the uterus observed in female rats at the high dose (2500 ppm 162.8 mg/kg/day) to treatment because:

at historica

.al. : 1 3

aured by

discounted...

and lack of

31 4 1

A. Billian

Det 1 3 2 200

. Ou dealor ed is exuc

- 1) of the lack of a dose response.
- 2) increases were not statistically significant in the pair-wise test.
- 3) there was no adenomas present in the uterus.
- 4) the incidence of adenocarcinomas was in the general range (0-5.8%) of historical mean controls. coucture activity, etc.

The Committee concluded that the carcinogenicity study in hamster was unacceptable and inadequate to assess the carcinogenic potential of tralkoxydim for reasons stated earlier. The very low survival among females in the control (6%) and treated (0%, 9.7% and 16.7% at the low-, mid-, and high-dose) groups compromised the evaluation of the significance of the adenomas of the adrenal glands observed in this sex at the mid and high dose groups.

In mutagenicity testing, tralkoxydim was shown to be non-mutagenic in adequate in vivo and in vitro assays.

Clethodim and Sethoxydim, compounds structurally-related to tralkoxydim, were reported to be not carcinogenic or mutagenic. They were not however, evaluated by HED's Cancer Assessment Review Committee.

In accordance with the Agency's Proposed Guidelines for Carcinogen Risk Assessment (April 10, 1996), the Committee classified Tralkoxydim as a "likely" human carcinogen. This classification is based on the following factors:

- 1) occurrence of benign Leydig cell tumors at all dose levels with the incidences at the high dose exceeding the concurrent and historical control range.
- 2) lack of an acceptable carcinogenicity study in a second species as required by Subdivision F Gudidelines.
- 3) the relevance of the testicular tumors to human exposure can not be discounted.

The Committee recommended that a linear low-dose approach (q1\*) for human riskou MRID 4 characterization and extrapolation of risk should be based on the occurrence of benign Leydig cell HED is continuing tumors of the testes in male rats at all dose levels tested. At the present time, HED is continuing to use the multistage model which calculates the q1\* due to the inconsistencies and lack of consensus regarding the method of low dose linear extrapolation discussed in the 1996 Proposed Guideline for Carcinogen Risk Assessment. and the diet at

> ise: vere equivalent to 0, 3 to 2 8 mg/kg/day for females weeks enterim sacrifice).

泉点

#### I. INTRODUCTION

On July 8, 1998, the Health Effects Division's Cancer Assessment Review Committee (CARC) evaluated the carcinogenic potential of tralkoxydim. The Committee evaluated a combined chronic toxicity/carcinogenicity study in Wistar rats and a carcinogenicity study in Syrian golden hamsters. Dr. James Peggins of Toxicology Branch 1 presented the experimental design and results of these studies, statistical analysis of the tumor data, weight-of-evidence considerations, as well as the toxicology, metabolism, mutagenicity and structure-activity relationship data.

#### II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Tralkoxydim (2-[1-(ethoxyimino)propyl]-3-hydroxy-5-(2,4,6-trimethylphenyl-2-cyclohexen-1-one) is a systemic, postemergence herbicide belonging to the cyclohexanedione class, which acts specifically on the inhibition of acetyl-CoA carboxylase in plants resulting in the inhibition of malonic acid biosynthesis. Tralkoxydim selectively controls annual grass weeds in cereal grain crops. The proposed use is for the control of annual grass weeds (wild oats, green and yellow foxtail, annual ryegrass, and Persian darnel) in wheat and barley. Tralkoxydim is currently registered for use on barley and wheat in Canada, where only the parent is regulated, with a MRL of 0.02 ppm (method log). The PC Code: 121000.

$$CH_3 \xrightarrow{OH} CH_2CH_3$$

$$CH_3 \xrightarrow{OH} CH_2CH_3$$

$$CH_2CH_3$$

Tralkoxydim

#### III. EVALUATION OF CARCINOGENICITY STUDIES

## 1 Combined Chronic/Oncogenicity in Wistar Rats-

Reference: Stonard, M.D. (1994). First-Revision to Tralkoxydinard law 6-Mear Feeding Study in the Rat. Zeneca Central Toxicology Laboratory Aderley Park, described, Chesite, UK. Laboratory Study No. PRO648. June 9, 1994. MRID 43339707.

## A. Experimental Design

p Yea:

L:Maci

310-

Twelf

o numerical increases in b

In a combined chronic toxicity/carcinogenicity study (MRID:43839707) tralkoxydim (92.4% a.i.) was administered to 64 Wistar rats/sex/dose in the diet at dose levels of 0, 50, 500, or 2,500 ppm for 104 weeks. These doses were equivalent to 0, 2.3, 23.1 or 117.9 mg/kg/day for males and 0, 3.0, 30.1, or 162.8 mg/kg/day for females. Twelve rats/sex/group were sacrificed at 52 weeks (interim sacrifice)

#### B. Discussion of Tumor Data

As shown in Table 1, benign Leydig cell testicular tumors were seen in all treated groups including the concurrent controls. However, the incidence at the high dose (2500 ppm or 117.9 mg/kg/day) had a significant increasing trend, and a significant difference in the pairwise comparison (both at p < 0.01) when compared to concurrent controls. The statistical analyses of the male rats were based upon Peto's Prevalence Test since there was a statistically significant negative trend for mortality with increasing doses of Tralkoxydim in male rats.

Table 1. Male Rat Testicular Tumor Rates and Peto's Prevalence Test Results.

Benign Leydig cell Tumors	0 ppm (0 mg/kg/day)	50 ppm (2.3 mg/kg/day)	500 ppm (23.1 mg/kg/day)	2500 ppm (117.9 mg/kg/day)
Incidence	3/42	5/40	6/47	15/49ª
Percentage	7 .	12	13	31
P=	0.002**	0.249	0.341	0.006**

<sup>\*</sup> Number of tumor bearing animals/Number of animals examined, excluding those that died or were sacrificed before observation of the first tumor (censored data).

Note: Significance of trend denoted at control.

Significance of pair-wise comparison with control denoted at dose level.

If \*, then p < 0.05. If \*\*, then p < 0.01.

May 10 Ot Dushing

When compared to historical control data (uncensored data), the incidence of benign Leydig cell tumors in the low (5/40, 12%) and middle (6/47, 13%) dose groups was within the range (3.8 to 19.9%) while the incidence at the high dose (15/49, 31%) exceeded the range.

As shown in Table 2, there were also numerical increases in brain astrocytomas with increasing doses in male rats but there were no statistically significant increases in trend or pair-wise comparisons of the dosed groups with the concurrent controls and the incidences were within the general range (0 to 5.8%) of historical controls.

a at week 87, dose 50.000

with the control of stend denoted at control.

of pair-wase comparison with control ?

15 If then p < 0.01

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>a</sup> First benign Leydig cell tumor observed at week 82, dose 2500 ppm.

Table 2. Male Rat Brain Tumor Rates and Peto's Prevalence Test Results.

Brain Astrocytomas	0 ppm 50 ppm (2.3 mg/kg/day) mg/kg/day)		500 ppm (23.1 mg/kg/day)	2500 ppm (117.9 mg/kg/day)
Incidence (%)	2/50 (4%)	l <sup>a</sup> /49 (2%)	2/51 (4%)	3/50 (6%)
P=	0.071	pare Malia 🕳 e	0.461	0.140

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>†</sup> Number of tumor bearing animals/Number of animals examined, excluding those that died or were sacrificed before observation of the first tumor.

Note: Significance of trend denoted at control.

Significance of pair-wise comparison with control denoted at dose level.

If , then p < 0.05. If , then p < 0.01.

As shown in Table 3, among female rats, there was a statistically significant increasing trend (p<0.05) for cervical benign stromal poyps. There was, however, no significant differences in the pair-wise comparisons of the treated groups with the controls. There was a numerical increase in uterine adenocarcinoma at the high dose, but no statistically significant increases in trend or pair-wise comparisons and no uterine adenomas.

Table 3. Female Rat Uterine Tumor Rates<sup>+</sup> and Exact Trend Test and Fisher's Exact Test Results

Tumor Type	0 ppm	50 ppm	500 ppm	2500 ppm
		(3.0 mg/kg/day)	(30.1 mg/kg/day)	(162.8 mg/kg/day)
Benign stromal cell poyps (%)	. Adequacy of ! 0/49 (0)	Posing 10 1751 (2)	0/46 (0)	3/48 (6)
<b>p</b> =	he d <b>0:033</b> ested		1.000	0.117
	ras based out significated (2) 25		0/48 (0)	3/49 (6)
p=	0.088	0.748	0.510	0.301

<sup>\*</sup> Number of tumor bearing animals/Number of animals examined, excluding those that died or were sacrificed before week 54.

Note: Significance of trend denoted at control and M D And Lacker Significance of pair-wise comparison with control denoted at dose levely Park No colerated

If , then p < 0.05. If , then p 5001. CTL/P 2362.

The Registrant did not sortife

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>a</sup> First astrocytoma observed at week 56, dose 50 ppm.

<sup>\*</sup>First benign stromal cell polyp observed at week 64, dose 50 ppm.

First adenocarcinoma observed at week 87, dose 50 ppm

5 to 15% and

contivition eaked

When compared to historical control data, the incidence of benign stromal cell polyps of the cervix at high dose (6%) exceeded the range (0 to 2%). The incidence of uterine adenocarcinomas in all groups was in the general range of historical controls (0 - 5.8%).

#### C. Non-neoplastic Lesions

As shown in Table 4, there was an increase in the incidence of Leydig cell hyperplasia of the testes in male rats at the high dose.

Table 4. Leydig Cell Hyperplasia in Male Rats Fed Tralkoxydim for 104 Weeks (including interim sacrifice).

Leydig Cell Hyperplasia	0 ppm (0 mg/kg/day)	50 ppm (2.3 mg/kg/day)	500 ppm (23.1 mg/kg/day)	2500 ppm (117.9 mg/kg/day)
Unilateral	2/64	3/64	3/64	4/64
Bilateral	2/64	2/64	1/64	. 10/64
Combined	4/64 (6%)	5/64 (8%)	4/64 (6%)	14/64 ( 22%)

In additon, increased liver clear cell areas were observed upon histopathological examination (35/64 in males vs. 17/64 in controls and 12/64 in females vs. 1/64 in controls). Females also showed significantly increased hemosiderin in the Kupffer cells and elevated plasma alanine transaminase activity at the 2,500 ppm dose. Gross pathological changes, observed at the high dose, were increased numbers of discolored testes and testes with white areas compared to controls. At termination, treatment-related microscopic eye lesions, observed as bilateral retinal atrophy, occurred in 26/49 females at 2,500 ppm tralkoxydim.

## D. Adequacy of Dosing for Assessment of Carcinogenic Potential

The doses tested were considered to be adequate and not excessive in both sexes. This was based on: significantly (p<0.01) decreased body weight gains (males, - 6 to 15% and females, - 18-25%); decreased food consumption (- 5 to 14%), and significantly increased liver weights (males, p<0.05 and females, p<0.01) which correlated with hepatic clear cell areas in both sexes at the high-dose, relative to the controls. In addition, decreased RBC count and hematocrit were noted in the high dose females which was reflected in hemosiderosis in the liver.

## 2. Oncogenicity Study in the Hamster

Reference: Stonard, M. D. (1994) Tralkovy time: Lifetime Feeding Study in the Hamster. Zeneca Central Toxicology Laboratory, Alderto, Park. Macclesfield, Cheshire, UK. Lab ID: Report No. CTL/P/2362, Study No. PX0671, 6/894. MRID 43339710. The Registrant did not conduct a carcinogenicity study in the second species, the mouse,

: المألل الم

misters

(as recommended by Subdivision F Guidelines), due to significant porphyria which occurred after dosing with tralkoxydim and which precluded selection of doses adequate to test for carcinogenicity. The data indicated that of all the species tested (rats, hamsters. Guinea pigs, marmosets, dogs, deer mice, white-footed mice, and meadow voles), only the single species of mouse (Mus musculus) was susceptible to porphyrin accumulation in the liver following treatment with tralkoxydim. This was considered to be an

idiosyncratic response of the mouse (Mus musculus) and not relevant to human exposure.

### A. Experimental Design

In a carcinogenicity study (MRID 43339710), tralkoxydim (97.6% a.i.) was administered to 72 Syrian hamsters (strain Lak LVG (SYR))/sex/dose in the diet at 0 (three control groups of 72 animals each), 250, 2500, or 7500 ppm (equivalent to 0, 14.9, 153, and 438.6 mg/kg/day for males and 0, 14.8, 148.3, and 427.9 mg/kg/day for females) for 78 weeks.

#### B. Discussion of Tumor Data

Table 5. Adrenal Gland Tumors in Female Hamsters Fed Tralkoxydim for up to 79 weeks

Dose Group (ppm)	0	0	.0	250	2500	7500
Adenoma	0/72 (0%)	1/72 (1%)	1/72 (1%)	2/72 (3%)	4/72 (6%)	4/72 (6%)
Week to first observation:	NA	72	65	66	_55	42
Carcinoma	0/72 (0%)	1/72 (1%)	0/72 (0%)	0/72 (0%)	2/72 (3%)	0/72 (0%)
Aadenoma/ earcinoma combined	0/72 (0%) p = 0.016	2/72 (3%)	1/72 (1%)	1		arcai sigr ho <b>4/22 (6%)</b> in males

estion of a and at p=0.016.

a edrenals as not co and a control groups as As shown in Table 5, adenomas of the adrenal gland were observed in the three control groups as well as in the treated groups. Under the conditions of this study, there is a suggestion of a mains carcinogenic response in the adrenal gland of the female hamster. A positive trend at 0.01616 100 100 100 was shown for total tumor incidence. Historical control data for this tumor type/strain were not available. Among males the spontaneous occurrence of adrenocortical adenomas was more sample and the frequent than in females. Among control males in each of three groups, the tumor was observed in 8-12/72; the incidence in treated groups was 7-11/72. In addition, as shown in Table 6, due to the low survival of the females (6% in controls), a definitive conclusion regarding carcinogenicity of the chemical cannot be drawn from this study.

L (11

12

Table 6. Survival (%) of Hamsters Fed Tralkoxydim for 79 weeks (Kaplan-Meier estimate)

	Males					Females,		
Week	О ь	250	2500	7500	0	250	2500	7500
N	72	72	72	72	72	72	72	72
1	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100
13	100	100	98.6	100	99.5	100	100	100
26	99.1	97.2	94.4	98.6	89.4	95.8	9Î.7	97.2
39	93.1	87.5	90.3	88.9	73.6	69.4	76.4·	80.6
52	84.3	<b>8</b> 0.6	76.4	76.4	51.7	45.8	58.3	59.7
58	78.7	75.0	72.2	70.8	40.5	31.9	47.2	50.0
66	66.7	62.5	63.9	59.7	24.2		1103166 C	41.7
74	54.6	51.4	52.8	48.6	· 12.6	4.2	11.1	<b>2</b> 3.6
<b>78</b>	48.6	43.1	47.2	40.3	6.1	0	9.7	16.7

N = Number of animals

a Data from pp. 48-49 of the study report.

Control values are the mean of three control groups.

169 - males and 37-48% if females 'In similarly-tios

## C. Non-neoplastic Lesions

A dose-related increase in lipofuscin accumulation was observed in the hepatocytes of males and females. The incidence was 85% in high dose males and 83% in mid-dose males (vs 58% of controls) and 71% in high dose females and 36% in mid-dose females (vs 10% of controls). This is not considered to be of toxicological significance at The number of animals with cortical pigmentation of the adrenals showed a slight increase with dose in females (11% at 7500 ppm vs 3% in controls), but not in males (332,50% were set affected in all groups). The pigment accumulation in adrenals is not considered related to treatment.

Other lesions were notable because they were thought to be responsible for intercurrent deaths in all groups. Chronic enteropathy of the small intestine was considered to be a contributory factor in the deaths of 55% of both sexes. The findings indicated that this condition was progressive, appearing as Stage 1 (chronic enteritis) in the majority of animals, with Stages 2 (chronic ulcerative enteritis) and 3 (glandular dysplasia) occurring less frequently and still fewer animals showing Stages 4 and 5.

Labsing at 40 mg/kg to bile-dum a boot the dose in males and 63 46more arme and 1-2% was a

n ance the light increase was 33,50% were sidered related

ie, 100 a en

for intercurrent adcred to be acqued that this e-majority of plasse, when

to a milaria a

13

Amyloid deposition in kidneys, liver, adrenals, spleen, and thyroid affected 20% of male and 70% of female hamsters across all groups, and was severe enough to have contributed to the unscheduled deaths of 11% of males and 50% of females. Cardiovascular disease was observed in 10% of males and 40% of females, and most of the affected animals had considerable amyloid deposition in major organs. Cardiovascular changes were thought to have contributed to the deaths of approximately 7% of the affected males and 30% of the affected females.

### D. Adequacy of Dosing for Assessment of Carcinogenic Potential

The doses tested in this study were not adequate for testing the carcinogenic potential of tralkoxydim in Syrian hamsters. Treatment-related systemic toxicity was not observed at any dose level tested, including the highest dose. In addition, the low survival rates in both control (6%) and treated females (0% at low dose, 9.7% at mid-dose and 16.7% at high-dose) at termination further decreased the confidence of this study and deemed the study to be inadequate to assess the carcinogenic potential of tralkoxydim.

#### IV. TOXICOLOGY

#### 1. Metabolism

In a series of related rat metabolism studies (MRIDs 43339720, 43339721, 43339723, and 43339747), [phenyl-U-14C] or [2,4-14C-cyclohexene] tralkoxydim (>95% a.i.) was administered to Crl:CD BR strain male and female rats by gavage as a single dose at 1 or 40 mg/kg or as a single dose at 1 mg/kg following a 14-day pretreatment with unlabeled tralkoxydim at 1 mg/kg.

[14C]Tralkoxydim was excreted from male rats primarily via the urine, whereas female rats excreted approximately equal amounts via the urine and feces. The amount of radioactivity absorbed was rapidly excreted, and was independent of sex, dose level, and preconditioning. Within 48 hours of dosing to non-cannulated rats, radioactivity in the urine totaled 59-66% of the dose in males and 42-46% in females, and radioactivity in feces totaled 31-36% in males and 37-48% in females. In similarly-tibsed bile-duct cannulated rats, radioactivity was primarily excreted via the olle (males, 78%; females, 64%), with lesser amounts excreted in the urine (both sexes, 10-13%), indicating enterohepatic circulation of tralkoxydim. When administered at 1 mg/kg (with or without pretreatment) or 40 mg/kg, 96-106% of the administered dose was recovered after 168 hours. Urinary excretion totaled 60-68% of the administered dose in males, and 45-51% in females. Fecal excretion totaled 33-38% of the dose in males and 43-53% in females. Of the remaining radioactivity, ≤0.7% was recovered in cage washes, and ≤0.5% was in tissues/carcasses. Within 48 hours of dosing at 40 mg/kg to bile-duct cannulated rats, biliary excretion accounted for 76-79% of the dose in males and 63.46-64.33% in females, and for both sexes, 9-12% was excreted in the urine and 1-2% was excreted in feces.

14

Levels of radioactivity in tissues were low for all dose groups, comprising  $\le 0.03\%$  of the administered dose. For the single high dose group, residue levels in blood were 4x higher in males  $(0.20 \ \mu g/g)$  compared to females  $(0.05 \ \mu g/g)$ .

The metabolite profiles in urine were similar between sexes and dose groups, although the levels of metabolites differed. No unchanged tralkoxydim was detected in urine of rats from any of the test groups, except for trace amounts in urine from the preconditioned low dose group, and <5% in bile from bile-cannulated rats. The data indicate that the major metabolic pathway for tralkoxydim involves oxidation of the methyl groups of the trimethylphenyl moiety, yielding tralkoxydim alcohol which is further oxidized to tralkoxydim acid or tralkoxydim diol.

In a hamster metabolism study [phenyl-U-14C]tralkoxydim (96% a.i.) was administered to five Syrian hamsters/sex by gavage as a single dose at 1 mg/kg (MRID 43339722),

[ $^{14}$ C]Tralkoxydim was readily absorbed by male and female hamsters following oral dosing, as evidenced by the high percentage of renal excretion. Peak urinary elimination (~57-59%) occurred within 24 hours of dosing. Within 7 days of dosing, ~82-88% of the administered dose was recovered from males and females, of which ~67-69% was in the urine, 14-18% was in the feces, and 0.7-1.0% was in the cage washes. In the tissues/organs of both sexes, levels of radioactivity were highest in the liver (0.009-0.010  $\mu$ g/g), followed by the kidney (0.004-0.005  $\mu$ g/g) and blood (0.003  $\mu$ g/g), and were below detection limits in fat, heart, lung, brain, muscle, spleen, bone and gonads. The carcass accounted for the highest percentage of the administered dose in both sexes (males, 0.14%; females, 0.17%) (MRID 43339722),.

The metabolic profile in urine was similar for males and females; no unchanged tralkoxydim was detected, and two major degradates were tentatively identified: 4-(2-[1-(ethoxyimino)propyl]-3-hydroxy-2-cyclohexen-1-one-5-yl)-3,5-dimethylbenzoic acid (tralkoxydim acid) and 4-(3-ethyl-4,5,6,7-tetrahydro-4-oxo-1,3-benzoxazol-6-yl)-3,5-dimethylbenzoic acid (tralkoxydim acid oxazole) (MRID 43339722).

A comparison of these results with the previous rat metabolism study shows similarities as well as differences between the species. Based on the results of the rat study, tralkoxydim was readily absorbed with most the radioactivity being excreted with 48 hours of dosing. Similarly in hamsters, residues in tissues were low and no unchanged tralkoxydim was isolated in the urine, and the metabolites tralkoxydim acid and tralkoxydim acid oxazole, were detected in hamster urine fractions. Two additional metabolites in rat urine were tralkoxydim alcohol and in males, tralkoxydim diol; neither metabolite was isolated in the hamster urine fractions.

half evels (480 mg/kg)

#### 2. Mutagenicity

When tested in several in vivo and in vitro mutagenic assays, tralkoxydim was not shown to be mutagenic under the conditions of the assays. These assays satisfy the Subdivision F Guideline requirements for mutagenicity testing.

### (i). Gene mutation in bacteria (Ames Assay)

The Ames battery of TA (mutant) strains of Salmonella typhimurium was exposed for 64-68 hours to test article (94.9% a.i.) at six concentrations (1.6 thru 5000 ug/plate). No significant increases over solvent in revertent colonies (his+) controls were evident in any bacterial strain at any dose up to the HDT (5000 ug/plate) either in the absence or presence of mammalian metabolic activation (rat S-9) (MRID No. 43301706).

(ii) Forward gene mutation in mammalian cells in culture (L5178Y/TK+/-) L5178Y (mouse lymphoma) cells were exposed in two independent trials to test article at concentrations up to the limit of solubility. No consistent increase in forward gene mutation (TK+ to TK-) was found in either trial up to precipitating levels (400 ug/ml). At 400 ug/ml moderate cytotoxicity (relative survival 32% of solvent) was manifest (MRID Nos. 43355709 and 43222025).

### (iii) Chromosome damage in vitro (HLC/CA)

Human lymphocytes from two healthy donors (one male; one female) were exposed *in vitro* to test article, and analyzed for structural chromosomal aberrations. No increased incidence of chromosome damage was found in cultures treated up to the limit of solubility and cytotoxicity (250 ug/ml), in either the presence or absence of metabolic activation (MRID No. 43355711).

## (iv) DNA damage/repair in vivo (rat hepatocytes)

Groups of rats received a single oral dose at 250, 500 or 1000 mg/kg, and were sacrificed 4 or 12 hours later. No increase in unscheduled DNA synthesis was found for any dose up to the cytotoxic HDT (1000 mg/kg) (MRID No.43355710).

## (v) Chromosome damage in vivo (mouse MT)

Male and female mice received a single intraperitoneal injection at 300 or 480 mg/kg, and samples of bone marrow cells were assessed for the presence of polychromatic erythrocyte (PCE) containing micronuclei at 24, 48 and 72 hours post dose. There was no reproducible induction of micronuclei at doses up to lethal levels (480 mg/kg) (MRID No.43355712)

14:

#### 3. Structure-Activity Correlations

Tralkoxydim is structurally related to Clethodim and Sethoxydim. Both of these chemicals are registered for use by the Agency as post-emergence herbicides. Both were non-carcinogenic and non-mutagenic.

There was no evidence of carcinogenicity following dietary administration of clethodim to male and female mice at 0, 20, 200, 1000 or 3000 ppm (0, 3, 30, 150, or 450 mg/kg/day, respectively) for 78 weeks or to male and female rats at 0, 50, 20, 500 or 2500 ppm (0, 0.25, 1, 25, or 125 mg/kg/day, respectively) for 104 weeks (MRID Nos. 41030112 and 41030121).

There was no evidence of carcinogenicity following dietary administration of sethoxydim to male and female mice at 0, 40, 120, 360 or 1080 ppm (0, 6, 18, 54, or 162 mg/kg/day, respectively) or to male and female rats at 0, 40, 120, 360 ppm (0, 2, 6, 18 mg/kg/day, respectively) for 104 weeks (MRID Nos. 070817, 070819, 070815, 070816).

$$CH_3 \xrightarrow{OH} CH_2CH_3$$

$$CH_3 \xrightarrow{OH} CH_2CH_3$$

$$CH_2CH_3$$

**Tralkoxydim** 

Sethoxdim

ah pana leters meaa ais-dose level. Minim 2005) administered 2500.

· . . ! \ ' . . . .

1,47

CONTRACTOR

#### FTV

ar B re as did sea

I in the a mi

### 4. Subchronic, and Chronic Toxicity Studies

#### i. Subchronic

An initial 28 day feeding study examining groups of C57BL/10JfCD-1/Alpk/mice dosed with tralkoxydim at 2 to 5000 ppm (MRID No.43339715) identified the liver as the target organ. Increases of 20-93% (p≤0.05) in relative (to:body) liver weights were observed in animals dosed at ≥50 ppm. Biliary hyperplasia and fibrosis with accumulation of brown pigmentation (suggestive of porphyrin accumulation) in the bile ducts and Kupffer cells were observed in mice fed ≥25 ppm. Crystalline aggregates were observed in the lumen of bile ducts; macrophages, and hepatocytes in livers of mice dosed at 1250 and 5000 ppm. A slight vesiculation and increased (p<0.01) proliferation of the smooth endoplasmic reticulum was observed in the liver of the 5000 ppm mice. No treatment-related findings were observed in the livers of Alpk:AP (Wistar derived) rats that had been dosed via the diet for 28 days with tralkoxydim (99.2% a.i.) at 50 to 5000 ppm. (MRID No. 43339708).

Additional studies (MRID No's 44104812 through 44104814) indicated that dosing mice with tralkoxydim led to the formation of N-methylprotoporphyrin IX (N-CH<sub>3</sub> PPIX), which caused an inhibition of the liver enzyme ferrochelatase resulting in an over stimulation of heme synthesis and accumulation of porphyrins in the liver. When rats were exposed to tralkoxydim, total porphyrin content was similar to controls and ferrochelatase activity was unchanged. An *in vitro* study (MRID No. 44104811) using mouse and rat hepatocytes confirmed these findings. An additional *in vitro* study using cultured human hepatocytes (MRID No. 44104817) indicated that tralkoxydim will not cause porphyria in humans.

In subchronic studies in rats, dogs and hamsters (MRID No's 43339705; 48639706 and 43339712) the major toxicity appeared to be hepatic. In the dogs (MRID No's 43339706), this occurred primarily in the high dose group (50 mg/kg/day) and was reflected in significant changes in essentially all parameters measured 48 lowevering minimal histopathology was observed at this dose levels. Minimal systemic attacking was observed in rats (MRID No.43339705) administered 2500 approximately diet for 90 days, although plasma cholesterol and triglyceride levels were significantly ulate decreased and ALT activity was significantly increased. In the hamster (MRID To No. 43339712) tralkoxydim had a clear effect on liver morphology and function at dose levels of 5,000; 10,000 and 20,000 ppm.

### ii. Chronic

In chronic toxicity studies in dogs and rats the primary target organ of tralkoxydim toxicity was also the liver.

ing (MRID \n
gikgeday) and was
used However.
I systemic toxicity
ppm withe diet for
a namificantly

wand function at

malkoxydir

3 800 375

المثانيان

minimizes were

In a chronic dog study male and female beagles were administered tralkoxydim at 0, 0.5, 5 and 50 mg/kg/day in their feed. Tralkoxydim did not appear to be toxic to dogs treated at 0.5 mg/kg/day, while one male dog in the 5 mg/kg/day treatment group had elevated plasma alanine transaminase activity and moderate periportal fatty changes in the liver. A slightly increased (8%) absolute liver weight in males further indicated some hepatotoxicity at this dose level. Lipid metabolism was affected in the 5 mg/kg/day females, as demonstrated by cholesterol and triglyceride levels which were 26-28% lower than the control values during week 52 (MRID No.43339709).

Dogs in the 50 mg/kg/day treatment groups showed clear evidence of liver toxicity due to treatment. Both sexes exhibited increased plasma alkaline phosphatase (ALK) and plasma alanine transaminase (ALAT) activities compared to the controls. The increases were most pronounced during week 52, when ALK activities were elevated 313-349%, and ALAT activities were elevated 78% in males and 230% in females compared to the controls. Both sexes had increased absolute (51-69%) and adjusted (54-65%) liver weights. Liver abnormalities included enlargement in 1/4 males and 2/4 females; an accentuated lobular pattern in 2/4 males and 4/4 females; swollen lobes in 2/4 males and 4/4 females;

discoloration in 1/4 males; mottling in 2/4 males and 3/4 females; and friable livers

in 3/4 males and 4/4 females. Microscopic examination revealed diffuse or periportal fatty change in the livers of all 50 mg/kg/day dogs. The severity was slight in 1/4 females, moderate in 2/4 males and 1/4 females, and marked in 2/4

males and 2/4 females (MRID No.43339709).

भाः प्रदश्<del>षाद्यः ।</del>स

Additional findings observed in the 50 mg/kg/day treatment groups appeared to be related to treatment. Males were slightly anemic, based in decreased red blood cell counts, hematocrit, and hemoglobin (8-11%) during weeks 13, 26 and/or 52 compared to the controls. Plasma albumin levels were depressed 20% in both sexes, and total protein levels were 29% lower in males and 48% lower in females compared to the corresponding controls. Lipid metabolism was affected in both sexes, as demonstrated by reduced cholesterol (29-48%) and triglyceride (49-64%) levels. Changes to the adrenal glands in both sexes indicated a toxic response to treatment. Increased absolute (62-77%) and adjusted (70-75%) adrenal gland weights were accompanied by vacuolation of the zona fasciculata and zona reticularis that was moderate in males and marked in females. The severity of vacuolation in females was concentration-dependent; minimal vacuolation was observed in 3/4 females treated at 5 mg/kg/day, and in 1/4 females in each of the control and 0.5 mg/kg/day treatment groups. The toxicological significance of increased absolute (37-42%) and adjusted (42-47%) thyroid weights in both sexes is equivocal since no associated histopathological changes were observed (MRID) No.43339709).

Inweign ie.

ffected in reycende
xic respons
idrenal glan
and zona
c &c.

xiclation
s in ea

oser ...

In a chronic toxicity /carcinogenicity study in rats, animals were administered tralkoxydim at 0, 50, 500 or 2500 ppm in the diet for 104 weeks. None exhibited treatment-related toxicity in the 50 or 500 ppm groups. There were no treatmentrelated effects on mortality. In the high-dose animals, mean body weight gains were significantly lower (p≤0.01) than controls for males at weeks 4-64 (16-15%) and for females (p≤0.01) throughout the feeding period (118-25%). Feed consumption was significantly lower (p≤0.01) during the first 24 weeks of feeding (↓5-14%) and sporadically significant (p≤0.05) through 104 weeks. Food conversion efficiency was also significantly lower (p≤0.01) during weeks 1-12 in males and females of the 2,500 ppm treatment group, compared to controls. Clinical signs of toxicity observed were urinary incontinence in males, thin appearance in females, and thickened eyelids in both sexes. Decreases in hemoglobin related to decreased red cell counts, hematocrit, and mean cell volumes were consistent with signs of microcytic anemia in both males and females. Plasma alanine transaminase was significantly elevated in females throughout the treatment period (132-56%) and in males at 13 weeks only (131%). Relative liver weights were significantly increased in both males and females (p≤0.05 and 0.01, respectively) at 52 weeks and still increased, but not significantly so, at 104 weeks. Increased liver clear cell areas were observed upon histopathological examination (35/64 in males vs. 17/64 in controls and 12/64 in females vs. 1/64 in controls). Females also showed significantly increased hemosiderin in the Kupffer cells and elevated plasma alanine transaminase activity at 2,500 ppm tralkoxydim. Gross pathological changes, observed at the high dose. were increased numbers of discolored testes and testes with white areas compared to controls. At termination, treatment-related microscopic eye lesions, observed as bilateral retinal atrophy, occurred in 26/49 females at 2,500 ppm tralkoxydim (MRID 43339070).

#### V. COMMITTEE'S ASSESSMENT OF WEIGHT-OF-EVIDENCE:

The Committee considered the following weight-of-evidence determination on the carcinogenic potential of tralkoxydim-me adenocarcine mas (3/4)

1. Carcinogenicity

ाह्यान्त्रent because 1) of the lack of a देव 1 को अञ्चलकेंद्रियार in the pair-wise test; and

Trange (0-5 8%) of historical contri

Evidence of carcinogenicity was limited to the presence of benign testicular tumors in male Wistar rats. The occurrence of astrocytomas of the brain in males, benign stromal cell polyps in the cervix, and adenocarcinomas in the uterus of female rats were not attributed to treatment. The significance of the adenomas of the adrenal glands, seen in female hamsters, could not be ascertained due to the poor survival (intercurrent disease) of this sex which invalidated the study.

els ested ivere not adequate to assert one toxicity was seen even at the high

and and 1277 mg/kg day in his



In males at the high dose (2500 ppm or 117.9 mg/kg/day), there was a significant trend (p=0.002) and a pair-wise significance (p=0.006) in benign Leydig cell tumors when compared to controls. Tumor incidences at the high dose (15/49, 31%) exceeded the concurrent controls (3/42, 7%) as well as the historical control range (3.8 to 19.2%) of the testing laboratory. In addition, there was an increase in the incidence of Leydig cell hyperplasia of the testes in male rats at the high dose (4/64, 6%) when compared to controls (14/64, 22%).

The Committee noted that in spite of a ten-fold increase in doses between the low-dose (50 ppm or 2.1 mg/kg/day) and the mid-dose (500 ppm or 23.1 mg/kg/day), there was no statistically significant increase in tumor incidences between the low-dose (5/40, 12%) and the mid-dose (6/47, 13%). Additionally, the incidences at these doses were within the historical control range (3.8 to 19.2%). The Committee, however, noted that the numerical increase of testicular tumors at the low-and mid-dose groups could be biologically significant and therefore can not be discounted in spite of the lack of statistical significance.

The statistical evaluation of mortality indicated a significant <u>decreasing</u> trend with increasing doses of tralkoxydim in male rats. Female rats showed no significant incremental changes in mortality with increasing doses of tralkoxydim. Because of this finding, the statistical analyses of the male rats were based upon Peto's Prevalence Test. The statistical analyses of the female rats were based upon the Exact Trend Test and the Fisher's Exact Test for pair-wise comparisons.

The Committee did not attribute the numerical increase in astrocytomas of the brain seen in male rats at the high dose (3/50, 6%) to treatment because: 1) the increase did not show pair wise significance (p=0.140) when compared to concurrent controls (2/50, 4%); 2) the incidence was within the general range of historical controls (0-5.8%); and 3) there were no treatment-related non-neoplastic lesions in the brain

-b) rack of an acceptable/garagovers.

milar wall

The Committee did not attribute the numerical increases in benign stromal cell polyps (3/48, 6%) and uterine adenocarcinomas (3/49, 6%) observed in female rats at the high dose to treatment because: 1) of the lack of a dose response; 2) increases were not statistically significant in the pair-wise test; and 3) the incidence of adenocarcinomas was in the general range (0-5.8%) of historical controls. Also, there were no adenomas present in the uterus. The stromal cell polyps which occur spontaneously within the uterus, are considered benign, and there is no evidence to indicate that they would transform into a more aggressive form with time.

The Committee concluded that the earcinogenicity study in hamster was unacceptable and inadequate to assess the carcinogenic potential of tralkoxydim for the following reasons:

1) the dose levels tested were not adequate to assess carcinogenicity since no treatment-related systemic toxicity was seen even at the highest dose tested (7500 ppm; 438.6 mg/kg/day in males and 427.9 mg/kg/day in females); 2) a rationale for doses tested was

not provided, 3) very low (6%) survival among females in the control groups compromised the evaluation of the significance of the adenomas of the adrenal glands (observed in this sex at the mid and high dose groups), 4) amyloid deposition in kidneys, liver, adrenals, spleen and thyroid affected 20% of males and 70% of females across all groups and 5) most of the intercurrent deaths were attributed to non-treatment-related reasons (such enteropathy of the small intestine, generalized amyloidosis, and cardiovascular disorders) indicating that the poor survival rate was due to intercurrent disease or the animal husbandry procedures at the testing laboratory.

### 2. Mutagenicity

In mutagenicity testing, tralkoxydim was shown to be non-mutagenic in adequate in vivo and in vitro assays.

### 3. Structure Activity Relationship

Clethodim and Sethoxydim, compounds structurally-related to tralkoxydim did not exhibit any carcinogenic activity in mice and rats. They were not however, evaluated by HED's Cancer Assessment Review Committee.

#### VI. CLASSIFICATION OF CARCINOGENIC POTENTIAL

In accordance with the Agency's Proposed Guidelines for Carcinogen Risk Assessment (April 10, 1996), the Committee classified Tralkoxydim as a "likely" human carcinogen. This classification is based on the following factors:

- (a) occurrence of benign Leydig cell tumors at all dose levels with the incidence at the high dose exceeding concurrent and historical control range.
- (b) lack of an acceptable Zearcinogenicity study in a second species as required by Subdivision F Guidelines [3].
- (c) the relevance of the testicular tumors to human exposure can not be discounted.

the -

### VII. QUANTIFICATION OF CARCINOGENIC POTENTIAL

25.

The Committee recommended that a linear low-dose approach (q<sub>1</sub>\*) for human risk characterization and extrapolation of risk should be based on the occurrence of benign Leydig cell tumors of the testes in male rats at all dose levels tested. At the present time, HED is continuing to use the multistage model which calculates the q<sub>1</sub>\* due to the inconsistencies and lack of consensus regarding the method of low dose linear extrapolation discussed in the 1996 Proposed Guideline for Carcinogen Risk Assessment.



#### IX. BIBLIOGRAPHY

	MRID No.	<u>CITATION</u>
	43301706	R. Callander, R. (1986). PP604: An Evaluation in the Salmonella Mutagenicity Test. ICI Central Toxicology Laboratory (CTL), Macclesfield, Chesire, UK. Study No. CTL/P/1495. May 1, 1986.
уста	43339707.	Stonard, M.D. (1994). Two-Year Feeding Study in the Rat. Zeneca Central Toxicology Laboratory, Alderley Park, Macclesfield, Chesire. UK. Laboratory Study No. PRO648. June 9, 1994.
	43339710.	Stonard, M. D. (1994). Tralkoxydim:Lifetime Feeding Study in the Hamster. Zeneca Central Toxicology Laboratory, Alderley Park, Macclesfield, Cheshire, UK. Laboratory Project ID: Report No. CTL/P/2362, Study No. PX0677, June 8, 1994.
	43339720	Prout, M.S. and E.F. Howard (1994). First revision to PP604: Excretion and tissue distribution of a single oral dose (1 mg/kg) in the rat. Zeneca Central Toxicology Laboratory, Alderley Park, Macclesfield, Cheshire, UK. Laboratory Report No. CTL/P/1393. Study No. UR0196. May 12, 1994.
	43339721	Prout, M.S., E.F. Howard, and A. Soames. (1994). First revision to PP604: Excretion and tissue distribution of a single oral dose (40 mg/kg) in the rat. Zeneca Central Toxicology Laboratory, Alderley Park, Macclesfield, Cheshire, UK. Laboratory Report No. CTL/P/1482. Study No. UR0195, UR0208. May 16, 1994.
Cheshire.	43339723	Prout, M.S. (1994). First revision to tralkoxydim: Biotransformation in the rat. Zeneca Central Toxicology Laboratory, Alderley Park, Macclesfield, Cheshire, UK. Laboratory Report No. CTL/P/1907. Study No. UR0199, UR02225. April 25, 1994
mulkg) study ir mulkg) study ir	43339747.	Bratt, H. (1994). First revision to tralkoxydim: Repeat dose (1 mg/kg) study in the rat. Zeneca Central Toxicology Laboratory, Alderley Park, Macclesfield, Cheshire, UK. Laboratory Report No. CTL/P/2121. Study No. UR0224. April 25, 1994.

Prout, M.S. and E.F. Howard. (1994). First revision to trafkoxydim: Excretion · 43339722. and tissue retention of a single oral dose (1 mg/kg) in the hamster. Zeneca Central Toxicology Laboratory, Alderley Park, Macclesfield, Cheshire, UK. Laboratory Report No. CTL/P/1627. Study No. UX0217. June 17, 1994.

		-	012913			
TRALKOXYDIM		CANCER ASSESSMENT DOCUMENT	FINAL (10/7/98)			
Us. Lal		P. Clay. (1985, 1992). PP604: Assessment of Mutagenic Potential Using L5178Y Mouse Lymphoma Cells. ICI Central Toxicology Laboratory (CTL), Macclesfield, Chesire, UK. Study No. CTL/P/1495. November 4, 1985 and March 20, 1992.				
43355710	DNA Synthes (CTL), Macc	1987). Tralkoxydim: Assessment for the Insis in Rat Hepatocytes in vivo. ICI Central lesfield, Chesire, UK. Study No. CTL/P/14 September 23, 1987.	Toxicology Laboratory			
43355711	Cytogenetic S Laboratory (C	, Braithwaite, I., Howard, C., and Richards Study in Human Lymphocytes in vitro. IC CTL), Macclesfield, Chesire, UK. Study N 395. October 30, 1985.	CI Central Toxicology			
43355712	Evaluation in	Richardson, C., Shaw, J. And Barber, G (19) the Mouse Micronucleus Test. ICI Central lesfield, Chesire, UK. Study No. CTL/P/13	al Toxicology Laboratory			
·						

£. 1